SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 20, 2014
1:41 p.m

1:41: 20 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Kelly called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:41 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Cick Bishop
Senat or Lyman Hof f man

ALSO PRESENT

Patri ck Mar shal |, Youth  Trai ner, Al aska Youth for
Environnental Action, Craig; Ron WIson, Self, Juneau;
El aine  Vroman, Sel f, Juneau; Arl ene  Ludw g, Sel f,

Anchorage; M chael Mooradian, Substance Abuse Counselor,
Chugi ak.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Bryce Ward, Self, City of North Pole; Susan Warner, Self,
Fai r banks; Darl ene Supplee, Menber, North Star Counsel on
Agi ng, Fai r banks; Antoni o  Shumacher, Sel f, Cty of
Fai r banks; Wrren Cumm ngs, Chi ef, Fai r banks Fire
Departnent, Fairbanks; Terry Sol onon, Volunteer, Chena Cold
Stream Fire and Rescue, Fairbanks; Bonnie Wl dstad, Self,
Fai r banks; Mel anie Lindholm Volunteer, Planned Parenthood,
Fai r banks; Gerald Brown, Phar maci st , Fai r banks; Virgie
Thonmpson, Mayor, City of Houston; Doug Giffin, Cty
Manager, City of Palnmer; John Cannon, Self, Wasilla; Rachel
G eenberg, Deputy Director, Mt-Su Senior Services, WMat-Su;
Robin Mnard, Director, Public Affairs, Mat-Su Health
Foundat i on, Mat - Su; Chuck Foster, Assistant Executive



Director, Wsilla Area Seniors Coalition, Mat-Su; D ane
Hut chi son, Assenbly Menber, Fairbanks North Star Borough
Assenbly, Fairbanks; Jon Zasada, Health Care Provider,

Anchorage Nei ghborhood Health Center, Anchorage; Mchelle
Baker, Operations Director, South Central Behavioral Health
Foundation; Christopher Truitt, Self, Anchorage; Joshua
Franks, Manager, South Central Foundation, Anchorage; Linda
Conover, Co-Chair, | magi nation Library, Wasilla; Kar |

Garber, Executive Director, Al zheinmer's Resource Al aska,

Anchor age; Tamy W1 1ianson, Sel f, Anchor age; Ki me
McClintock, Self, Anchorage; Jessica Cer, Al aska Public
Affairs Manager, Al aska Pl anned Parenthood Votes Northwest,

Anchor age; Abbe Hensley, Self, Best Beginnings, Anchorage;

Karin Schaf f, Vi ce- Presi dent, Tr eat ment Ser vi ces,

Vol unteers of Anerica Al aska, Anchorage; Douglas Pace,

Self, Tal keetna; Leeanne Carrothers, President, Al aska
Physi cal Therapy Association, Anchorage; Patricia Senner,

Nur se, Al aska Nurses Association, Anchor age; Shirl ey
Mar quardt, Myor, Gty of Unal aska; Elaine Dahlgren, Chief

Executive O ficer, Volunteers of Alaska, Anchorage; Angela
Doroff, Enployee, Kachemak Bay Research Reserve, Honer;

George Matz, Chairman, Kachemak Bay Research Reserve
Council, Fritz Creek; Jill Lush, Executive D rector, Sprout

Fam |y Services, Honer; Katie Koester, Self, Cty of Homer;

Stacey Buckel ew, Enployee, Kachemak Bay Research Reserve,

Honer; Bryan Zak, Self, Honmer; Maria Cal houn, Coordi nator,

Parents as Teachers, Sprout Famly Services, Honmer; Jim
Hor naday, Menber, Kachemak Bay Research Reserve Council,

Homer .

SUMVARY

CSHB 266( FI N)
APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS

CSHB 266( FIN) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

CSHB 267( FI N)
APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

CSHB 267(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

PUBLI C TESTI MONY:

FAI RBANKS, MNAT-SU
ANCHORAGE, UNALASKA

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



GLENNALLEN, SEWARD, HOMER

#hb266
#hb267
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 266(FIN)

"An Act nmeking appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnment and for
certain prograns, capitalizing funds, and nmaki ng
r eappropri ations; and providing for an effective
date."

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 267(FI N

"An Act neking appropriations for the operating and
capi tal expenses of t he state's i nt egrated
conprehensi ve nental health program and providing for
an effective date."

1:41: 33 PM

APUBLI C TESTI MONY: FAI RBANKS, NMNAT-SU

1:41: 33 PM

BRYCE WARD, SELF, CITY OF NORTH POLE (via teleconference),
spoke in support of the restoration of $10 mllion in
revenue sharing and the governor's proposed $3 billion cash

infusion into the Public Enployees Retirenment System
(PERS). He announced that a reduction in revenue sharing in
North Pole would be equal to approximately $33,200. He
furthered that an increase in the PERS from 22 percent to
24 percent was $5,800. He stressed that the revenue sharing
and effect on PERS would result in an $81,000 budget
deficit for the Gty of North Pole, including |osing one
full-time enployee. He stressed that the City of North Pole
used revenue sharing to offset operational expenses and
taxes that were otherwise paid for by residents and
busi nesses. He remarked that the revenue sharing in North
Pol e equal ed approximately 0.5 percent in sal es tax.

1:42: 34 PM

SUSAN WARNER, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to halt spending, specifically related to
road developnment near the Chena Small Tracks Road in
Fai rbanks. She encouraged the commttee to focus on

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



savi ngs. She shared that there was a proposed road project
that nay be an attractive nuisance to small children in her
comunity to bodily injury, drowning, and death. She felt
that there was a "shovel ready" alternative already existed
across the street from the project. She stated that
Fai rbanks Natural Gas had scheduled to excavate the south
side of Chena Small Tracks Road in the upcom ng June. They
had surveyed for the project, and felt that the proposa
should return to its original form as a shoul der expansion.
She felt that conmbining the proposal with the Fairbanks
Natural Gas project would save the state $1 mllion.

1: 44: 53 PM

DARLENE SUPPLEE, MEMBER, NORTH STAR COUNSEL ON Ad NG
FAI RBANKS (via tel econference), voi ced support for the
Community Health Aide Program (CHAP). She stated that the
program was able to aid an elderly couple, who were each
di agnosed with cancer at the age of 84. The Meals on Weels
Program assisted the couple with the needed nutrition while
undergoing treatnment. She shared that the couple recently
passed away in their home, and due to the daily interaction
of the driver, CHAP was able to notify the famly of their
passi ng. She stressed that the program provided confort and
peace of mnd for both the seniors and the seniors

famlies.

1: 46: 25 PM

ANTONI O SHUVACHER, SELF, CTY OF FAI RBANKS (via
t el econference), spoke in support of the restoration of $10
mllion in revenue sharing and the governor's proposed $3
billion cash infusion into PERS. He echoed the coments of
M. Ward from North Pole. He stated that for every $100, 000
increase in expenses, there was approximately 1 percent
increase in PERS for the Gty of Fairbanks for its police
and fire departnents. He remarked that the Cty of
Fai rbanks could |ose the equivalent of approximtely one
full-time position. He stated that an increase from 22 to
24 percent contribution to PERS would result in losing two
full-time positions in Fairbanks' public safety departnent.
He stressed that there would be a decrease in the services
for the community. He stated that a $10 mllion reduction
woul d equate to approximately $85,000 in reductions to the
City of Fairbanks.

1:49: 00 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



WARREN  CUMM NGS, CHI EF, FAl RBANKS FIRE  DEPARTMENT,
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in support of the
restoration of $10 mllion in revenue sharing and the
governor's proposed $3 billion cash infusion into PERS. He
stated that increasing the PERS contribution from 22
percent to 24 percent would equal one fire-fighter position
and one police officer position elimnated. He pointed out
that it would be difficult for the Cty of Fairbanks to
i ncrease revenue, because of the tax gap. He stated that
the Anchorage Fire Departnent was approximtely eight tines
the size of the Fairbanks Fire Departnment, so the inpact on
Anchorage was a reduction of eight beginning fire-fighters.
He felt it was his obligation to support the naintenance of
the 22 percent contribution to PERS.

1: 50: 51 PM

PATRI CK  MARSHALL, YOUTH  TRAI NER, ALASKA YOUTH FOR
ENVI RONVENTAL ACTION, CRAIG testified in support of the
Farm School Budget Item He stressed that the Farm Schoo
program provided needed to schools across the state. He
felt that focusing on nutrition |ifestyle in schools, would
result in positive effects in the classroom

1:52:14 PM
AT EASE

1:52: 27 PM
RECONVENED

1: 52: 31 PM

TERRY SOLOMON, VOLUNTEER, CHENA GOLD STREAM FIRE AND
RESCUE, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), urged support of
funding for state wild fire crews. She stated that she
specialized in structure fires, but remarked that the wld
land fire fighters were wused as back up support for
structure firefighting. She shared that the local, highly
trained attack crews were essential in preventing damage to
homes and businesses in the conmmunity. She shared that
inporting crews from the |ower 48 was expensive and time-
consumi ng.

1:54: 27 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



BONNI E WOLDSTAD, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding the Wldstad vessel, by
including the remaining costs for retrofitting the vessel
She stressed that Alaska was experiencing anticipated
pressures on the Arctic coastal villages, so it was
inperative that Alaska maintain its two high endurance
patrol vessels. She renmarked that fisheries were tied to
the existence of the state, and the Alaska's constitution
was about nmaintaining control of its natural resources. She
felt that there needed to be a clear vision for Al aska's
future for the marine section's high endurance vessels.
Al aska needed to be conpetitive and ready for Arctic
exploration by being proactive rather than reactive. The
proposed repl acenent for the Wl dstad vessel was not a high
endurance vessel. The Wldstad was specifically designed
and built to provide public safety, and fishery patrol to
all Al askan waters. The vessel was al so capable to conduct
inshore fishery patrols; search and rescue; firefighting;
and resource-user contacts.

1: 57: 53 PM

MELANI E LI NDHOLM VOLUNTEER, PLANNED PARENTHOOD, FAI RBANKS
(via teleconference), testified in support of funding the
Chl anmydi a Canpai gn. She announced that Al aska clainmed the
hi ghest chlanydia infections in the US. for the seven
years prior. She felt that the program nust continue to
ensure public health and |ong-term savings. She stressed
that the funding was a crucial component to preventing the
spread of an easily treatable disease. She stressed that
testing for and treating chlanydia had a positive public
heal th inpact. She remarked that the high chlanmydia rate in
Al aska would not change, wunless the funding remained
i ntact.

1: 58: 53 PM

GERALD BROWN, PHARMACI ST, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in favor of full funding for the SHARP | and
SHARP 11 |oan repaynent prograns. He stressed that the
funding was vital for the health care services in Alaska's
rural areas. He felt that renoving the funding would result
in loss of valuable health care providers in the state.

Co-Chair Kelly announced that there was a letter from the
Health and Social Services subconmttee that recomrended

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



| oan repaynent for SHARP | and SHARP Il in the upcom ng
fiscal year.

2:00:45 PM

VI RA E THOMPSON, MAYOR, CTY OF HOUSTON (via
t el econference), spoke in support of the restoration of $10
mllion in revenue sharing and the governor's proposed $3
billion cash infusion into PERS. She remarked that the Gty
of Houston had Ilimted revenue from businesses, yet
provi ded services for over 2,000 residents. She stated that
the collected property taxes were specifically earnmarked
for public safety and transportation, to create a healthy
community. She announced that the Gty of Houston would be
forced to contribute to the unenploynent rate in the state,
if the revenue sharing was elimnated in the budget.

2:02:32 PM

DOUG R FFIN, Ty MANAGER, aTty OF PALMER (via
t el econference), spoke in support of the restoration of $10
mllion in revenue sharing and the governor's proposed $3
billion cash infusion into PERS. He echoed the remnarked of
Mayor Thonpson fromthe City of Houston. He stated that the
Cty of Palnmer had a small budget, and provided essenti al
services included police, fire, and roads. He remarked that
there was focus on value for every tax dollar from every
resident in Palmer. He remarked that the Palnmer would al so
experience a negative effect, if the PERS contribution was
increased from 22 percent to 24 percent. He expressed
thanks for the partnership with the state, because the
revenue sharing hel ped Palnmer to provide essential services
to Al askans.

2:04:18 PM

JOHN CANNON, SELF, WASILLA (via teleconference), testified
in support of fundi ng for t he Conpl ex Behavi or
Col | aborative (CBC). He explained that the CBC provided
training for caregivers and providers to serve people with
chal I enging behavior issues, including violent behavior
that results in harm to others and harm to self. He
recoommended fully funding the CBC at $525,000 for the
upcomng fiscal year. He stressed that the CBC was cost-
effective, and hel ped i ndi vi dual s avoi d costly
institutional placenent.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



2:05:52 PM

RACHEL GREENBERG DEPUTY DI RECTOR, MAT-SU SEN OR SERVI CES,
MAT-SU (via tel econference), spoke in favor of funding for
the Alaska Ceriatric Exchange Network (AgeNet). She
stressed that it was inportant to ensure that the seniors
in Alaska remained in Alaska as healthy and independent
citizens. She announced that a recent report showed that
Al aska seniors contributed $1.46 billion to Alaska's
econony. She remarked that the nunber was likely to
i ncrease, due to the senior population growh. She
encouraged the |owest cost nethod to keep Al aska's seniors
in their honmes and comunities. The |ow cost options
included stable funding for a state-wi de network of aging
and disability resource centers. She announced that there
were currently some state funds that were directed to the
Juneau, Kenai , Anchor age, and Dillingham aging and
disability resource centers; and a snmall anount of federa
funds directed to the Mat-Su. She pointed out that there
was currently no aging and disability center in Fairbanks,
North Pol e, Barrow, Bethel, Kodiak, and nany other areas of
the state. She stated that the funding request would
include tw long-standing senior grant programs; the
nutrition transportation support services; and the famly
caregi ver support program

2:09: 02 PM

ROBIN M NARD, DI RECTOR, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, MAT-SU HEALTH
FOUNDATI ON, MAT-SU (via teleconference), testified 1in
support of funding for the Conplex Behavior Collaborative
(CBC). She specifically asked for funding for substance
abuse treatnent progranms. She announced that substance
abuse was the nunber one health issue in the Mt-Su, and
was identified in a community health needs assessnent that
was conpleted the year prior. She stated that the study
interviewed over 500 people at 24 comunity neetings and
online. She stressed that substance abuse was linked to the
next four highest ranked problens: childhood traung;
depression and suicide; access to nmental health care; and
donestic viol ence and sexual assault.

2:10:34 PM

CHUCK FOSTER, ASSI STANT EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, WASILLA AREA
SENIORS, MAT-SU (via teleconference), spoke in favor of
funding for the Alaska Geriatric Exchange Network (AgeNet).

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



He echoed the testinmony of Ms. Greenburg related to funding
to senior grants prograns in the state. He referred to a
study conducted in the lower 48, which stated that for
every additional $25 that state's spent on hone delivered
nmeal s each year per person age 55 plus, associated with a
decrease in lowcare nursing care by 1 percent. He felt
that it was reasonable to believe that the benefit to the
state was greater than the benefit to the | ower 48.

2:12:21 PM

DI ANE HUTCH SON, ASSEMBLY MEMBER, FAI RBANKS NORTH STAR
BOROUGH ASSEMBLY, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in
support of the restoration of $10 mllion in revenue
sharing and the governor's ©proposed $3 billion cash
infusion into PERS. She felt that funding was inportant for
| ong-range budget planning. She stressed that the only
people that paid income taxes in the state were the
i ndi viduals. She pointed out that the nunicipalities would
be forced to increase their already maximum tax caps in
order to keep the essential services.

2:14:11 PM

APUBLI C TESTI MONY: ANCHORAGE, UNALASKA

2:14:14 PM

JON ZASADA, HEALTH CARE PROVI DER, ANCHORAGE NEI GHBORHOOD
HEALTH CENTER, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in
favor of full funding for the SHARP Il |oan repaynent
program He stated that the |oan program gave the Anchorage
Nei ghborhood Health Center the ability to provide care for
the wuninsured and underserved in Anchorage. Prior to the
SHARP program it took alnbst a year to replace providers
in the health center. He announced that the program all owed
for the staff menbers to receive over $200,000 in |oan
repaynent. The SHARP program |owered the turnover of
providers, and allowed for the health center to accept new
patients in the comunity usually within four to six days
of their first appointnent request. He stated that the
health center had recently nmade an agreenent wth the
Departnment of Mlitary and Veterans Affairs to receive
overflow from their health facility by adding 2,000
patients. The SHARP || program was essential to ensure that
this influx of patients was treated properly.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



2:17: 00 PM
AT EASE

2:34: 06 PM
RECONVENED

2:34:40 PM

M CHELLE BAKER, OPERATI ONS DI RECTOR, SQUTH CENTRAL
BEHAVI ORAL HEALTH FOUNDATI ON (via t el econf erence),
encouraged funding for substance abuse treatnent prograns.
She also testified in support of funding for the
residential substance abuse treatnment prograns. She stated
that the South Central Behavi or al Heal th  Foundati on
provided services to nore than 60,000 Al aska Native and
American Indian people across the state. She stated that
the prograns gave the foundation the ability to work to
reduce the high rates of alcoholism and substance abuse in
the state. She stated that the foundation provided
cust oner-owner services and prograns for individuals and
famlies of all ages. The services were integrated wth
other services on the Alaska Native Health canmpus, for a
whol e person care with recognition of the enotional and
soci al di mensi ons of physical health.

2:38:14 PM

CHRI STOPHER TRUI TT, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for the Anchorage Youth Job
Center. He felt that the Job Center was one of the nost
inportant resources for teens in Anchorage, because the
Anchorage high schools had recently lost their career
counsel ors.

2:39: 07 PM

JOSHUA FRANKS, MANAGER, SOUTH CENTRAL FOUNDATI QN, ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference), testified in favor of full funding
for the SHARP | and SHARP Il |oan repaynent prograns. He

stated that the SHARP progranms were conponents of the
Al aska care systemto provide access to the nost vul nerable
citizens of the state. He shared the South Centra

Foundation served nore than 60,000 Alaska Natives and
Arerican Indians in Alaska. He remarked that the SHARP
program allowed the foundation to recruit and retain many
of the difficult to fill positions to provide needed
servi ces.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



2:40: 51 PM

LI NDA CONOVER, CO CHAIR, | MAG NATION LI BRARY, WASILLA (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for the
| magi nation Library and Best Beginnings. She specifically
asked for $150,000 for early learning prograns. She shared
a personal story from sonmeone who had expressed gratitude
for the Imagination Library. She felt that the program
encouraged building oral |anguage skills, listening skills,

and the children's eagerness to learn. She stated that the
| magi nation Library regularly held events across the state
t hat encouraged and pronoted child literacy and educati on.

2:43:18 PM

KARL GARBER, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALZHEI MER S RESOURCE
ALASKA, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in favor of
funding for the Alaska Geriatric Exchange Network (AgeNet).
He stated that the Al zheinmer's Resource provided statew de
services to inprove the quality of |ife for frail elders
and those with Alzheiner's related disorders. He announced
that the services included education, support groups, care
claimng, and in-hone care. He also voiced support of the
National Famly Caregivers Support program The program
provi ded respite t rai ni ng and support for famly
caregivers. He announced that famly caregivers provided
the majority of in-home care for their |loved ones. He
stressed that the health of the famly caregivers was
inportant to ensure that they could provide the care for
their loved ones. He announced that, in Alaska 33,000
caregivers provided 37 mllion hours of wunpaid care to
their loved ones, with an estimated value of $459 nmillion

Al askan caregivers were nore likely experience health
issues related to caregiving, and utilized higher |evels of
health care. The program gave caregivers the information,
education, and support needed to maintain care in their
home setting for as long as possible. There was a
significant body of evi dence that denonstrated the
ef fecti veness of the services.

M. Garber read a letter from sonmeone who had attended
support groups for Alzheiner's Resource of Alaska. This
person had |earned valuable tools to help deal with the
effect of Alzheiner's on hinself and the person who was
afflicted with the disorder.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



2:49: 02 PM

TAMW W LLI AMSON, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for the Anchorage Job
Center. She explained that she had hel ped youth enter the
wor kforce. She stated that she had worked as a career
counselor in the Anchorage Job Center. She renarked that
the youth had talent, but needed the skills to enter the
wor kf orce. She stressed that w thout the support, the youth
may not be able to enter the workforce. She renmarked that
the Job Center was there to help youth obtain a job with a
living wage.

2:52: 29 PM

RON WLSON, SELF, JUNEAU, testified in support of the
t herapeutic courts. He stated that he had sonme substance
abuse issues, and the therapeutic courts had helped him
beconme a val uabl e nenber of society. He specifically voiced
support of substance abuse treatnent prograns.

2:54: 26 PM

ELAI NE VROVAN, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in support of funding
t herapeutic courts and substance abuse treatnent prograns.
She stated that she had sone substance abuse issues,
because of her childhood. She stated that she was able to
get help from treatnment prograns. She asked that the
al cohol tax be used for substance abuse treatnent.

2:56: 37 PM

ARLENE LUDW G  SELF, ANCHORAGE, testified in support of
funding for the Conplex Behavior Collaborative (CBC). She
specifically asked for funding for substance abuse
treatment and recovery. She stated that None had recently
experienced an influx of heroin addiction issues. She
shared that she was currently in recovery related to
subst ance abuse.

2:58:40 PM

M CHAEL MOORADI AN, SUBSTANCE ABUSE COUNSELOR, CHUG AK,
testified in support of funding for the Conplex Behavior
Col | aborative (CBC). He stated that addiction was the
problem and treatnent was the solution. He stated that he
had also attended the therapeutic court system He felt

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



that the program was very effective. He stressed that
substance abuse treatnent saved lives. He pointed out that
fundi ng was necessary to provide treatnent.

3: 00: 58 PM

KIME MCCLI NTOCK, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of the Chlanydia Canpaign. She
enphasized that early diagnosis and intervention was
inperative to protecting fertility. She stated that
synptons of sexually transmtted infections were often
easily treatable, if ~caught at the early stage. She
stressed that wthout the funding for the Chlanydia
Canpai gn, there could be a w despread health crisis in the
st at e.

3:03: 55 PM

JESSI CA CLER, ALASKA PUBLI C AFFAI RS MANAGER, ALASKA PLANNED
PARENTHOOD VOTES NORTHWEST, ANCHCORAGE (via tel econference),
testified in support of reinstating the $360,000 for the
Chl anmydi a Canpai gn. She stressed that the targeted program
was a proven solution. She felt that the funding was a
cruci al component for preventing the spread of a treatable
di sease. She stressed that there were often no synptons for
many sexually transmtted infections, but could result in
violent infections and infertility if gone untreated.

3:06:41 PM

ABBE HENSLEY, SELF, BEST BEG NNI NGS, ANCHORAGE (vi a
tel econference), testified in support of early education
progranms included the |Imagination Library and Best
Begi nni ngs. She shared that Best Beginnings provided
information and resources for famlies with young children
in several ways. She spoke specifically spoke to the
positive effect of the Imagination Library, which enabled
nore than 21,600 children under 5-years-old in 110
communities to receive a free, age appropriate high quality
book in the mail each nonth at no cost to their famly. The
cost of the program is $30 per year per child, and was
funded through contributions from individuals, businesses,
foundati ons, and the state.

3:09: 32 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



KARI N SCHAFF, VI CE- PRESI DENT, TREATMENT SERVI CES,
VOLUNTEERS OF AVERI CA ALASKA, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for the
Conmpl ex Behavior Collaborative (CBC). She specifically
voi ced support of funding for substance abuse treatnent
prograns. She stressed that treatnment services were
necessary and valuable to the state. Volunteers of Anerica
Al aska provided a full continuum of care for outpatient and
residential for adolescents ages 13 to 18 w th substance
use disorders and nental health disorders. She stated that
the treatnment intensity and level of care was matched to
the needs of the individual in order to produce successfu

outcones. She stressed that patients had conplex nental
health issues, often engaged in illegal behaviors, and
posed a threat to thenselves and others in the conmunity.

3:11: 36 PM

DOUGLAS  PACE, SELF, TALKEETNA (via tel econference),
testified in support of funding for the Conplex Behavior
Col | aborative (CBC). He stated that he had a brain injury,
and lost his brother to al coholism

3:12:58 PM

LEEANNE CARROTHERS, PRESI DENT, ALASKA PHYSI CAL THERAPY
ASSCCI ATI ON, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in
favor of full funding for the SHARP Il |oan repaynent
program She also testified in support of funding for
physi cal therapy assistance. She remarked that there were
many difficulties related to treating different types of
citizens of Alaska. She stressed that physical therapy
hel ped many patients to avoid expensive surgeries and often
reduced the need for long-term prescription nedication side
ef fects.

3:16: 26 PM

PATRI Cl A SENNER, NURSE, ALASKA NURSES ASSCOCI ATI ON,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in favor of full
funding for the SHARP Il | oan repaynent program She shared
that many of the rural areas of the state depended on
ot hers, and many behavi or services had trouble naintaining
a nursing staff. She stressed that there was a recent
nursing overtime crisis, and was appreciative of the SHARP
Il grants to ensure that the nursing personnel was healthy.
She understood that there was sone controversy related to

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



whet her or not the SHARP program grants were given to the
appropriate providers. She shared that the SHARP | program
had 72 percent directed toward rural providers; and the
SHARP |1 program directed 87 percent to rural providers.
She shared that the remaining grants went to providers in
rural areas that were providi ng behavioral health services.

3:17: 59 PM

SHI RLEY MARQUARDT, MAYOR, aTy OF UNALASKA  (via
t el econference), spoke in support of the restoration of $10
mllion in revenue sharing and the governor's proposed $3
billion cash infusion into PERS. She understood that the
state was facing a budget crisis, but hoped that the funds
woul d not be renoved fromthe nmunicipalities. She felt that
the inpact on renoving the revenue funding conbined wth
the increase in PERS contribution had too great a negative
effect on the municipalities in the state. She encouraged
support of the governor's proposal to nove $3 billion to
pay down the PERS debt. She stressed that t he
muni ci palities were partners with the state, and hoped that
there would continue to be a focus on savings, wthout the
burden on the nunicipalities.

3:21: 07 PM

ELAINE DAHLGREN, CH EF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, VOLUNTEERS OF
ALASKA, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), urged the commttee
to restore funding for resi denti al substance abuse
treatment prograns. She echoed the remarks from earlier
testifiers. She stressed that her organization hel ped youth
wi th substance use and nental health issues with an array
of various needs. Volunteers of Anmerica Alaska provided a
full continuum of care for outpatient and residential for
adol escents ages 13 to 18 with substance use disorders and
mental health disorders. She stated that the treatnent
intensity and | evel of care was nmatched to the needs of the

individual in order to produce successful outcones. She
stressed that patients had conplex nental health issues,
often engaged in illegal behaviors, and posed a threat to

t hensel ves and others in the community.

3:24: 23 PM
AT EASE

4:02:59 PM
RECONVENED

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



4:03:19 PM

APUBLI C TESTI MONY: G_ENNALLEN, SEWARD, HOVER

4:03:19 PM

ANGELA DOROFF, EMPLOYEE, KACHEMAK BAY RESEARCH RESERVE

HOVER (via teleconference), asked for the reinstatenent of
funds for the Kachemak Bay Research Reserve (KBRR). She
expl ained that the KBRR consisted of the Ccean, Coastal,

and Resource nanagenent division of National OCceanic and
At nospheric Adm nistration (NOAA), the state of Al aska, and
a council of local comunity nenbers. She stated that the
funds would be matched by a large sustaining grant from
NOAA. She stated that the KBRR provided educati on outreach

and research resolve training. In 2003, the KBRR education
program served over 4,000 students, teachers, and visiting
public. The KBRR also outreached vital information on
har vest ed speci es.

4:05:33 PM

GEORGE MATZ, CHAIRMAN, KACHEMAK BAY RESEARCH RESERVE
COUNCI L, FRITZ CREEK (via teleconference), asked for the
reinstatenent of funds for the Kachenak Bay Research
Reserve (KBRR). He echoed the remarks from Ms. Doroff. He
stated that the reinstatenent of funds would result in a
crucial state match for a NOAA grant. He announced that the
funding would allow for the awarding of many currently
existing grants for the KBRR He stated that, wthout the
KBRR, the partnership with the Islands and Cceans Visitors
Center. He shared that the Departnent of Fish and Gane
(DFG had recently submtted questions to NOAA, which
related to the inpact of shutting down KBRR He stated that
NOAA responded that there may be an obligation to KBRR by
the state to repay for certain prograns and buil di ngs.

4:08:57 PM

JILL LUSH, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, SPROUT FAMLY SERVI CES,
HOVER (via tel econference), testified in support of funding
for Parents as Teachers and Best Beginnings |magination
Li brary. She pointed out that the program evaluation
out cones showed narked changes, leading to an increase in
famly strength areas. She stated that nurturing a positive
discipline to the child and child safety by parents

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 16 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



increased by 18 percent. She also stated that obtaining
health and nedical care of the child had increased by 29
percent. She announced that the parents and famlies who
participated in the program reported that their perceived
parental know edge increased by 25 percent.

4:11: 03 PM

KATI E KCESTER, SELF, CTY OF HOVER (via teleconference)
spoke in support of the restoration of $10 mllion in
revenue sharing and the governor's proposed $3 billion cash

infusion into PERS. She also expressed support for the
reinstatenent of funds for the Kachenak Bay Research
Reserve (KBRR). She stressed that the Gty of Honer joined
with many nunicipalities across the state in advocating for
fully funding for revenue sharing. The Cty of Honmer used
the funding for basic operations. She remarked that the
City of Homer was appreciative of the funding that the
state had contributed to help nunicipalities wth the
staggering costs of PERS obligations.

4:12:12 PM

STACEY BUCKELEW EMPLOYEE, KACHEMAK BAY RESEARCH RESERVE
HOVER (via teleconference), asked for the reinstatenent of
funds for the Kachenmak Bay Research Reserve (KBRR). She
announced that the KBRR was the furthest north national
estuarine research reserve, so were a leader in climte
change research. She stressed that there was a close
connection between the work of the reserve and the City
Honmer's clinmate change plan as |eading researcher on ocean
rise, uplift, and erosion. She shared that the KBRR worked
and coordinates with nunmerous agencies with active youth
and adult education prograns. She felt that the KBRR was an
i nportant econom c engine, which brought in mllions of
dollars in wages and grants to the community in Honer.

4:14: 35 PM

BRYAN ZAK, SELF, HOVER (via teleconference), spoke in
support of the restoration of $10 million in revenue
sharing and the governor's proposed $3 billion cash
infusion into PERS. He had recently attended the board
nmeeting at the Homer Senior Center, and there was

di scussion regarding how to increase the rent in order neet
the cost associated with running the Honmer Senior Center.
If the Gty of Honmer did not receive the funding from

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 17 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



revenue sharing, the Honer Senior Center would face greater
financial strain than they were currently experiencing. He
felt that the commttee nenbers' constituencies had simlar
financial strains on their rmunicipalities.

4:16: 50 PM

MARI A CALHOUN, COORDI NATOR, PARENTS AS TEACHERS, SPROUT
FAM LY SERVICES, HOVER (via teleconference), testified in
support of funding for Parents as Teachers and Best
Begi nni ngs | magi nation Library. She urged the commttee to
adopt the governor's proposal as witten, with full funding
for the Parents as Teachers prograns in Alaska. She
stressed that early learning should be a priority. She
pointed out that the program evaluation outconmes showed
mar ked changes, leading to an increase in famly strength
areas. She stated that nurturing a positive discipline to
the child and child safety by parents increased by 18
percent. She also stated that obtaining health and nedica

care of the <child had increased by 29 percent. She
announced that the parents and famlies who participated in
the program reported that their percei ved parental

knowl edge increased by 25 percent. She stressed that the
program affected key factors that contributed to a decrease
of incidents of child abuse and neglect. She stated that,
in tw years, the increased annual enrollnent nunbers
increased from 12 to 81 children. The forecasted annual

enrollment would increase to 90 plus children for the
upcom ng fiscal year.

4:19: 31 PM

JIM  HORNADAY, MEMBER, KACHEMAK  BAY RESEARCH RESERVE
COUNCI L, HOVER (via teleconference), asked for t he
reinstatenent of funds for the Kachenmak Bay Research
Reserve (KBRR). He stated that the research reserve focused
on t hree poi nt s: sci ence, econoni cs, and state
responsi bility. He announced that the KBRR was the furthest
north national estuarine research reserve, so were a |eader
in climate change research. He stressed that there was a
cl ose connection between the work of the reserve and the
City Honmer's climate change plan as |eading researcher on
ocean rise, uplift, and erosion. He shared that the KBRR
wor ked and coordinates w th numerous agencies with active
youth and adult education prograns. He felt that the KBRR
was an inportant econom c engine, which brought in mllions
of dollars in wages and grants to the conmunity in Honer.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 18 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



4:21:55 PM
AT EASE

4:30: 35 PM
RECONVENED

CSHB 266(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in conmttee for further
consi derati on.

CSHB 267(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in conmttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OQURNIVENT
4:31: 06 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 4:31 p.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 19 03/20/14 1:41 P. M



